| | | TE | CHNICAL | SPECIFI | CATION | No. | I-ET-301 | 0.00-5140 | -700-P4X- | ·002 |
|----------------|-------------|---------------|-------------------|-----------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| B | R | CLIENT | : | | | | | | Sheet: 1 | _{of} 32 |
| | | JOB: | | | | | | | | |
| PETRO | OBRAS | AREA: | | | | | | | | |
| 0.0 | 05 | TITLE: | SPECIF | | FOR ELE | CTRICAL | MATERI | AL FOR | INTE | RNAL |
| SR | GE | | | | OFFSHOF | RE UNITS | | | ES | UP |
| | | MICR | OSOFT WO | RD / V. 365 | / I-ET-3010. | 00-5140-70 | 0-P4X-002_ | M.DOCX | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | 1 | | | IND | EX OF R | EVISION | IS | | | |
| REV. | | | D | ESCRIP [.] | TION AN | D/OR RE | VISED S | HEETS | | |
| 0 | ORIGI | NAL | ISSUE | | | | | | | |
| А | Review | ved, co | orrected it | ems and r | eferences, | included a | and exclud | led items i | ndicated in | n text. |
| В | REVIE | WED | WHERE | INDICA | ГED. | | | | | |
| C | REVIE | WED | ITEMS: | 2.2.7, 3.5 | 5.5, 3.5.6, | 3.5.9, 3. | 5.10, 3.5. | 11, 3.6.5. | 3 (Table 3 |), 3.6.3.3, |
| | 3.6.3.8 | , 3.7. | 3, 3.7.4, | 4.7.5.8, 4 | 4.8.5.1.1, 4 | 4.8.5.7.2, 4 | 4.8.1.8, 4. | 8.4.8.2, 4 | .11.24, 4. | .18.12.3.2, |
| | 4.18.12 | 2.3.14 | , 4.20.3, 4 | 4.22.26; 4 | 4.22.29 4. | 22.38, 4.2 | 23.32, 5.2 | 2.3, 5.5.2. | .1, 5.6.3 (| Table 18), |
| | 5.7.2, | 5.7.8, | 5.7.9, 5 | .7.10, 5.7 | '.11, 5.7.1 ₄ | 4, 5.8.1, | 5.8.2, 5.8 | 3.6, 5.13.2 | 2.2, 5.13.3 | 3.1 a) (iii), |
| | 5.13.3. | 1 b), | 5.14.2.4, | 5.14.2.8, | 5.14.2.9, | 5.14.2.10 |).5, 5.14.2 | 2.11.2, 5. | 14.2.11.3, | 5.14.3.1, |
| | 5.14.3. | 3, 5.1 | 4.3.7.1, 5 | 5.14.4. | | | | | | |
| D | REVIS | ED W | VHERE IN | DICATE | D DUE TO | O CONSIS | STENCY | ANALYS | IS | |
| Е | REVIS | ED 1 | ITEM 4.1 | 8.5.1, A | CCORDIN | IG TO C | CLARIFIC | ATION 1 | NOTICE | DUE TO |
| | BIDDE | ER QU | JESTION | S | | | | | | |
| F | REVIE | WED | WHERE | INDICA | ГED. | | | | | |
| G | REVIS | ED W | VHERE IN | DICATE | D DUE TO | O CONSIS | STENCY | ANALYS | IS | |
| Н | REVIE | WED | ITENS 5 | .7.10, 5.7. | 11, 5.7.12 | | | | | |
| J | REVIE | WED | ITENS 3 | .6.5.1, 3.8 | .2, 4.8.3.7 | .6, 4.18.2. | 6, 4.18.10 | .3, 5.7.9, 5 | 5.8.7, 5.14. | .4. |
| K | REVIE | WED | WHERE | INDICA | ГED | | | | | |
| L | GENE | RAL | SCOPE A | ND CON | FENT RE | VIEW - R | EVIEWEI | O WHERE | E INDICA' | TED |
| М | REVIE | WED | WHERE | INDICA | ГED | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | 1 | 1 | | 1 | | |
| | | V. 0 | REV. E | REV. F | REV. G | REV. H | REV. J | REV. K | REV. L | REV. M |
| DATE DESIGN | | /01/18 SUP | DEC/02/20 ESUP | MAR/18/21 EEI/ESES | APR/20/21 EEI/ESES | APR/28/21 EEI/ESES | JUL/15/21 EEI/ESES | DEC/10/21 EEI/ESES | AUG/15/22 EEI/ESES | NOV/10/22 EEI/ESES |
| EXECUTION | | | BAYO | CLT0 | CLT0 | CLT0 | CLT0 | CLT0 | CLT0 | CLT0 |
| CHECK | | BIO.P | FABIO.P | KJK9 | UR6X | BD36 | BD36 | KJK9 | KJK9 | UR7U |
| APPROVAL | | TOSO | REGGIANI | UQBE | UQBE | UQBE | UQBE | UQBE | UQBE | UQBE |
| | | | | PETROBRAS, BI | EING PROHIBITEI | OUTSIDE OF TI | HEIR PURPOSE | | | |
| | D TO PETROB | 11-36 | DIREV.L | | | | | | | |

| | | REV. |
|---|---------------------|--------------------|
| TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-F | ² 4X-002 | ^{REV.} M |
| BR | SHEET: | 2 _{of} 32 |
| PETROBRAS SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTER | NAL |
| OFFSHORE UNITS | ESU | JP |
| | | |
| TABLE OF CONTENTS | | |
| | | 0 |
| 1 OBJECTIVE | | |
| | | - |
| 2.1 GENERAL | | 3 |
| 2.2 CODES, STANDARDS AND RECOMMENDED TRACTICES | | |
| 3 SCOPE MODIFICATIONS AND ACTUAL REFERENCES | | |
| 4 MATERIALS | | |
| 4.1 GENERAL | | 12 |
| 4.2 THREADED JOINTS | | |
| 4.3 CONNECTORS FOR POWER, CONTROL AND GROUNDING | | |
| 4.4 GALVANIC INSULATION | | 13 |
| 4.5 ALUMINIUM MATERIALS REQUIREMENTS | | |
| 4.6 NON-METALLIC MATERIALS | | |
| 4.7 CABLE TRAYS 4.8 PHASE AND GROUNDING BARS | | |
| 4.9 SEALS FOR CABLES PASSAGE ON HAZARDOUS AREAS FLOORS AND BULK | | |
| 4.10 CABLE GLANDS | | |
| 4.11 POWER SOCKET-OUTLETS | | 22 |
| 4.12 JUNCTION BOXES | | |
| 4.13 UMBILICAL POWER CABLE JUNCTION BOX | | |
| 4.14 CONTROL BOXES FOR PUSH-BUTTONS AND SIGNALLING | | |
| 4.15 TERMINAL LUGS AND TERMINAL BLOCKS FOR CABLES | | |
| 4.16 CABLE CLEATS 4.17 ELECTRICAL CABLES | | |
| 4.17 ELECTRICAL CABLES 4.18 OPTICAL FIBER CABLES AND ACCESSORIES | | |
| 4.19 NETWORK CABLES AND ACCESSORIES | | |
| 4.20 CONDUITS | | |
| 4.21 ANALOGUE TRANSDUCERS | | |
| 4.22 HEAT TRACING | | |
| 4.23 PRINTED CIRCUIT BOARDS | | |
| 5 ANNEX I – ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS | | 31 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-F | P4X-002 REV. M |
|-----------|---|----------------|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 3 of 32 |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP |

1 OBJECTIVE

- 1.1 This specification establishes the necessary technical requirements for design, manufacture, and supply electrical material for all facilities of PETROBRAS Offshore Units, including installations in modules and packages.
- 1.2 Classification Society requirements shall prevail over requirements of this document.
- 1.3 Important comment for this revision:

Due to specification review of scope, some previous specification contents have been transferred to other dedicated specifications. Previous information will be addressed in section 3 to indicate the specification reference.

2 REFERENCE STANDARDS AND DOCUMENT LIST

2.1 GENERAL

At the design development and for material specification, IEC standards shall be used, all on their latest revisions. Exceptionally, where it is clearly justifiable, ANSI, IEEE and others, internationally recognized standards, may be used. Their use shall be restricted to specific cases and shall be approved by PETROBRAS.

2.2 CODES, STANDARDS AND RECOMMENDED PRACTICES

2.2.1 IEC – INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

| [1] IEC 60068-2-10 | Environmental Testing - Part 2-10: Tests - Test J and Guidance: Mould Growth |
|---------------------|---|
| [2] IEC 60068-2-11 | Basic Environmental Testing Procedures |
| [3] IEC 60068-2-14 | Environmental Testing - Part 2-14: Tests - Test N: Change of Temperature |
| [4] IEC 60068-2-2 | Environmental Testing - Part 2-2: Tests - Test B: Dry Heat |
| [5] IEC 60068-2-30 | Environmental Testing - Part 2-30: Tests - Test Db: Damp Heat, Cyclic (12h + 12h cycle) |
| [6] IEC 60079 | Explosive Atmospheres - All parts |
| [7] IEC 60079-0 | Explosive Atmospheres – Part 0: Explosive atmospheres - Part 0: Equipment - General requirements |
| [8] IEC 60079-11 | Explosive atmospheres – Part 11: Equipment protection by intrinsic safety "i" |
| [9] IEC 60079-30-1 | Explosive atmospheres - Part 30-1: Electrical resistance trace heating - General and testing requirements |
| [10] IEC 60079-30-2 | Explosive Atmospheres - Part 30-2: Electrical Resistance Trace Heating - Application Guide for Design, Installation and Maintenance" |
| [11] IEC 60079-7 | Explosive Atmospheres - Part 7: Equipment Protection By Increased Safety 'E' |

| | | TEC | CHNICAL SPECIFICATION | ^{№.} I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-F | P4X-002 REV. M | |
|------|----------|--------|---|--|--------------------|--|
| 1: | 3R | AREA: | | 5 | SHEET: 4 of 32 | |
| PETR | OBRAS | TITLE: | SPECIFICATION FOR ELEC | | INTERNAL ESUP | |
| [12] | IEC 6009 | 92-101 | Electrical installations requirements | in ships - Part 101: Definiti | ions and general | |
| [13] | IEC 6009 | 92-201 | Electrical Installations | n Ships - Part 201: System De | sign - General | |
| [14] | IEC 6009 | 92-35(| | n ships - Part 350: General con atrol, and instrumentation cables | | |
| [15] | IEC 6009 | 92-352 | 2 Electrical Installations Electrical Cables | in Ships - Part 352: Choice Ar | nd Installation Of | |
| [16] | IEC 6009 | 92-353 | 3 Electrical Installations Voltages 1 KV And 3 F | in Ships - Part 353: Power (XV | Cables for Rated | |
| [17] | IEC 6009 | 92-354 | | in Ships - Part 354: Single- ruded Solid Insulation for Rate 30 KV (Um = 36 KV) " | | |
| [18] | IEC 6009 | 92-36(| Materials For Shipbo | in Ships - Part 360: Insulatin pard And Offshore Units, elecommunication Cables | | |
| [19] | IEC 6009 | 92-376 | 5 Electrical Installations Instrumentation Circuit | in Ships - Part 376: Cables s 150/250 V (300 V) | for Control And | |
| [20] | IEC 602 | 16-1 | | aterials - Properties of Thermal d Evaluation of Test Results | Endurance - Part | |
| [21] | IEC 602 | 16-2 | | aterials - Properties of Thermal Thermal Endurance Properti Thoice of Test Criteria | | |
| [22] | IEC 6022 | 28 | Conductors of Insulated | l Cables | | |
| [23] | IEC 6030 | 09 | Plugs, socket-outlets an | d couplers for industrial propo | oses - All parts | |
| [24] | IEC 6033 | 31 | Tests for electric cables | under fire conditions – Circui | t integrity | |
| [25] | IEC 603. | 31-11 | | s under fire conditions – Circu one at a flame temperature of a | ••• | |
| [26] | IEC 6033 | 31-21 | | s under Fire Conditions - Circu quirements - Cables of Rated V | | |
| [27] | IEC 603. | 32-1-2 | 1 | tical fibre cables under fire con e propagation for a single insula re-mixed flame | | |
| [28] | IEC 6033 | 32-1-3 | 3: Test for vertical flam | tical fibre cables under fire con e propagation for a single insulation of flaming droplets/par | ated wire or cable | |
| [29] | IEC 603. | 32-3-1 | | ptical Fibre Cables Under Fire Flame Spread of Vertically-M ratus | | |
| 1 | | | | | | |

| | | TECHN | CAL SPECIFICATION | ^{№.} I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | -P4X-002 REV. M |
|------|-----------|----------|---|--|---------------------|
| Ŀ | 3R | AREA: | | | SHEET: 5 of 32 |
| PETR | PETROBRAS | | CIFICATION FOR ELEC | INTERNAL ESUP | |
| [30] | IEC 603. | 32-3-22 | | ptical Fibre Cables Under Fire Flame Spread of Vertically-I gory A | |
| [31] | IEC 6044 | 45 | - | iples for Man-Machine Interf fication of Equipment Tern uctors | - |
| [32] | IEC 605 | 19 | Safety in Electroheat In | stallations - All parts | |
| [33] | IEC 6052 | 29 | Degrees of Protection P | Provided by Enclosures (IP Co | ode) |
| [34] | IEC 6069 | 95-7-2 | Fire hazard testing – Pa relevance of test metho | rt 7-2: Toxicity of fire effluer | nt – Summary and |
| [35] | IEC 6075 | 54-1 | | during combustion of materi f the halogen acid gas content | |
| [36] | IEC 6075 | 54-2 | • | during combustion of materi f acidity (by pH measurement | |
| [37] | IEC 6079 | 93 | Optical Fibres – All Par | rts | |
| [38] | IEC 6079 | 93-1-52 | Optical fibres – Part 1 - – Change of temperatur | 52: Measurement methods a re tests | nd test procedures |
| [39] | IEC 6079 | 94 | Optical fibre cables - A | ll parts | |
| [40] | IEC 6103 | 34-2 | | ke density of cables burning the procedure and requirements | - |
| [41] | IEC 6108 | 86 | Coating for Loaded Pr parts | inted Wire Boards (conformation) | al Coatings) - All |
| [42] | IEC 6189 | 92 | Mobile and Fixed Offsh | nore Units - Electrical Installa | tions - All parts |
| [43] | IEC 6189 | 92-1 | Mobile And Fixed Off General Requirements | Shore Units - Electrical Inst And Conditions | allations - Part 1: |
| [44] | IEC 6189 | 92-4 | Mobile And Fixed Off Cables | Shore Units - Electrical Inst | allations - Part 4: |
| [45] | IEC 6189 | 92-6 | Mobile and fixed offs Installation | hore units - Electrical insta | llations - Part 6: |
| [46] | IEC 6189 | 92-7 | Mobile And Fixed Off Hazardous Areas | Shore Units - Electrical Inst | allations - Part 7: |
| [47] | IEC 619 | 14 | Cable cleats for electric | al installations | |
| [48] | IEC 6239 | 95 | Electrical Resistance Commercial Applicatio | Trace Heating Systems for ns - All parts | or Industrial and |
| [49] | IEC 6244 | 44 | Cable glands for electri | cal installations | |
| [50] | IEC 6263 | 31-3-2 | | properties of solid insulating sesistive properties (D.C. me esistivity | |
| [51] | IEC TS 6 | 50034-25 | | chines - Part 25: Guidance for tors Specifically Designed for | - |

| | | TECHNICAL | | ^{lo.} [-] | ET-3010. | 00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 | REV. M |
|-------|------------------|---------------|---|----------------------------|------------|--------------------------|-------------|--------------------|
| T: | 3R | AREA: | | | | | SHEET: | 6 _{of} 32 |
| PETR | OBRAS | SPECIF | INTER | | | | | |
| | | | OFFSHORE | | | | ESI | _ |
| Note | | - | ormed, all applicable pa t will be listed followir | | | | - | ific part |
| 2.2.2 | IEEE - | - INSTITUTE | OF ELECTRICAL A | AND | ELECT | RONIC ENG | GINEERIN | G |
| [52] | IEEE 15 | | commended Practice and or Floating Facilities | | Marine C | able for Use | on Shipbo | oard and |
| 2.2.3 | IMO - | INTERNATIO | ONAL MARITIME C | ORG | ANIZAT | ION | | |
| [53] | IMO Res | s. A.754 (18) | RECOMMENDATIO "B" AND "F" CLAS | | | | E TESTS F | OR "A" |
| [54] | IMO MO | DDU CODE | Code for the Const Drilling Units | structi | on and] | Equipment o | f Mobile | Offshore |
| | IMO 20 Part 2 | 010 FTP Code | Material testing on s Resolution MSC.307 | | | | according 1 | o, IMO- |
| [56] | IMO SO | LAS | International Conven | ntion | for the Sa | afety of Life a | ıt Sea | |
| 2.2.4 | | | TARY - MINISTR DCCUPATIONAL SA | | | ONOMY - HEALTH | REGULA | ATORY |
| [57] | NR-10 | Sea | gurança em Instalações | es e Se | erviços en | n Eletricidade | e | |
| [58] | NR-12 | Seg | gurança no Trabalho er | em Má | áquinas e | Equipamento | 0S | |
| [59] | NR-37 | Seg | gurança e Saúde em Pla | latafo | rmas de F | Petróleo | | |
| 2.2.5 | AMER | RICAN SOCIE | TY FOR TESTING A | AND | MATER | RIALS (WHI | ERE SPEC | (IFIED) |
| [60] | ASTM E | 31 | Standard Specification | on for | Hard-Dra | awn Copper V | Wire | |
| [61] | ASTM E | 32 | Standard Specification | on for | Medium | -Hard-Drawn | Copper W | ire |
| [62] | ASTM B | 33 | Standard Specification | on for | Soft or A | Annealed Cop | per Wire | |
| [63] | ASTM E | 38 | Standard Specificat Conductors, Hard, Me | | | oncentric-Lay or Soft | -Stranded | Copper |
| [64] | ASTM E | 326/B26M | Standard Specification | on for | Aluminiu | um-Alloy Sar | nd Casting | |
| [65] | ASTM E | 333 | Standard Specification Electrical Purpose | on for | Tinned S | oft or Anneal | led Copper | Wire for |
| [66] | ASTM E | 8108/B108M | Standard Specification Casting | ion f | or Alum | inium-Alloy | Permanen | t Mould |
| [67] | ASTM E | 3221 | Standard Specificati Extruded Bars, Rods, | | | | Aluminiu | m-Alloy |
| [68] | ASTM B | 3846 | Standard Terminolog | gy for | Copper a | and Copper A | lloys | |
| [69] | ASTM D | | Standard Test Method Resistance of Plastics | | r Determi | ining the Izoo | d Pendulun | 1 Impact |
| [70] | ASTM D | | Standard Test Metho Insulating Materials | ods f | for DC | Resistance of | or Conduct | ance of |
| [71] | ASTM D | 0543 | Standard Practices for | for E | valuating | the Resista | nce of Pla | astics to |

| | | TECHNIC | AL SPECIFICATION | I-ET-3010.00-514 | 40-700 | -P4X-002 | REV. | Μ |
|-------|----------|-----------------------|---|-----------------------|----------|---------------|-----------------|--------------|
| L | 3R | AREA: | | | | SHEET: | 7 _{of} | 32 |
| PETR | OBRAS | SPEC | IFICATION FOR ELECT | FOR | INTE | RNAL | | |
| | | | OFFSHORE | UNITS | | ES | UP | |
| | | | Chemical Reagents | | | | | |
| [72] | ASTM D | 0635 | Standard Test Method of Burning of Plastics | | 0 | or Extent a | and T | ime |
| [73] | ASTM D | 0790 | Standard Test Method Reinforced Plastics an | - | | | orced | and |
| [74] | ASTM E | 284 | Standard Test Method Materials | for Surface Burning | Charac | eteristics of | Build | ling |
| [75] | ASTM E | 2662 | Standard Test Metho Generated by Solid Ma | | otical | Density o | f Sm | oke |
| [76] | ASTM F | 3059 | Standard Specification Used in Marine Constr | | • | mer (FRP) | Grati | ings |
| 2.2.6 | DNV | | | | | | | |
| [77] | DNV-OS | S-D201 | OFFSHORE STANDAR | DS - Electrical insta | allation | S | | |
| 2.2.7 | ΑΟΝΤ | ASSOCIA | ÇÃO BRASILEIRA D | Ε ΝΟΡΜΑΙΙΖΑΟ | λο τέ | | | |
| [78] | | – ASSOCIA IBR 5410 | Instalações elétricas | 2 | AU IE | | | |
| [78] | | BR 14136 | Plugues e Tomadas | | a Aná | ilogo atá ? | 01/24 | 50W |
| [/] | ADNIN | DK 14150 | em Corrente Alterna | - | | llogo ale 2 | 0A/2. | J U v |
| [80] | ABNT N | IBR 15708-1 | Indústrias do petrólo Materiais, métodos o | - | - | | s Part | e 1: |
| [81] | ABNT N | BR 15708-3 | Indústrias do petrólo Grade de piso | eo e gás natural — I | Perfis p | pultrudados | s Part | e 3: |
| [82] | ABNT N | BR 15708-4 | Indústrias do petról Sistema de Bandeja | - | Perfis p | oultrudados | s Parte | e 4: |
| [83] | ABNT N | BR 6493 | Emprego de cores pa | ara identificação de | tubulaç | rões | | |
| 2.2.8 | ISO - I | NTERNATI | ONAL STANDARDIZ | ATION ORGANIZ | ZATIO | N | | |
| [84] | ISO 62 | | Plastics - Determination | of Water Absorptior | 1 | | | |
| [85] | ISO 178 | | Plastics - Determination | of Flexural Propertie | es | | | |
| [86] | ISO 179- | | Plastics — Determinatio | n of Charpy impact | proper | ties — Par | t 1: N | Jon- |
| [87] | ISO 527 | | Plastics - Determination | of Tensile Properties | s - All | Parts | | |
| [88] | ISO 4892 | 2 | Plastics - Methods of Ex | posure to Laboratory | / Light | Sources - | All Pa | arts |
| [89] | ISO TS 1 | | Controlled equivalence r components of fire efflue | | | | | |

| ž. | | TECHNIC | AL SPECIFICATION | No. | I-ET-3010. | .00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 | REV. | М |
|--|----------------|-------------------------|---|--------|--------------|----------------|-------------|-----------------|-------|
| ER petrobras | | AREA: | | • | | | SHEET: | 8 _{of} | 32 |
| | | TITLE: SPEC | IFICATION FOR ELE | | | ERIAL FOR | INTERNAL | | |
| | | | OFFSHOP | RE U | NITS | | ES | SUP | |
| 2.2.9 | UL - U | NDERWRI | TERS LABORATOR | RIES | INC. | | | | |
| [90] U | L 94 | | UL Standard for Safet Parts in Devices and A | • | | nmability of H | Plastic Ma | terials | s for |
| [91] U | L 1581 | | UL Standard for Safety and Flexible Cords | y Ref | ference Stan | dard for Elect | trical Wire | s, Cat | oles, |
| 2.2.10 | ANSI - | AMERICA | N NATIONAL STAN | NDA | RDS INST | ITUTE | | | |
| [92] A | SME B | 1.20.1 | Pipe Threads, General | l Purj | poses (Inch) |) | | | |
| 2.2.11 | NATIC | ONAL FIRE | PROTECTION ASS | SOCI | ATION | | | | |
| [93] N | FPA 78 | 30 | Standard for the Instal | llatio | n of Lightni | ing Protection | Systems | | |
| 2.2.12 | IACS - | INTERNA | TIONAL ASSOCIAT | FION | OF CLAS | SIFICATIO | N SOCIE | TIES |) |
| [94] IACS No. 73 (June 2002) (Rev.1 Dec 2020) - Type trays/protective casings made of plastic | | | | | | procedure | for ca | able | |
| 2.3 RE | FERF | NCE DOO | CUMENTS | | | | | | |
| [95] | I-DE- | 3010.00-514 | 0-700-P4X-002 - POW | VER | INSTALLA | ATION TYPIC | CAL DET. | AILS | |
| [96] | I-ET-3 PROJ | | 0-800-P4X-013 - GEN | NERA | AL CRITER | RIA FOR INS | TRUMEN | TATI | ION |
| [97] | I-ET- | 3010.00-120 | 0-955-P4X-001 – WEI | LDIN | ١G | | | | |
| [98] | | | 2-130-P4X-001 - FL IADE OF COMPOSIT | | | | SYSTEN | 1S A | ND |
| [99] | | | 0-700-P4X-007 - SPH R OFFSHORE UNITS | | ICATION | FOR GENER | RIC ELEC | TRIC | CAL |
| [100] | | | 0-700-P4X-008 - GNALLING FOR OFI | | | | LIGHTIN | З А | ND |
| [101] | | | 0-700-P4X-009 - GEN EQUIPMENT FOR (| | - | | OR ELEC | TRIC | CAL |
| [102] | | 3010.00-514 HORE UNI | 0-712-Р4Х-001 - LC ГS |)W-V | /OLTAGE | INDUCTION | Ν ΜΟΤΟ | RS F | FOR |
| [103] | | 3010.00-514 HORE UNI | 0-712-Р4Х-002 - МЕІ ГS | DIUM | I-VOLTAC | E INDUCTI | ON MOTO | ORS F | FOR |
| [104] | | 3010.00-514 HORE UNI | 0-713-Р4Х-001 - SP ГS | ECIF | FICATION | FOR TRAN | ISFORME | RS F | FOR |
| [105] | | 3010.00-514 OFFHSORE | 0-714-P4X-001 - SPE UNITS | CIFI | CATION F | OR ELECTR | ICAL BA' | ΓTER | IES |
| [106] | | | 0-741-P4X-001 - LO EAR FOR OFFSHORE | | | MOTOR CO | NTROL | CENT | ΓER |
| [107] | | | 0-741-P4X-002 - WITCHGEAR FOR O | | | | TOR C | ONTF | ₹OL |

| | | TE | CHN | | SPEC | IFICA | TION | No. | I-ET- | 3010.0 | 0-514 | 10-700 | -P4X-00 |)2 ^{REV.} | Μ |
|--|--------------------------|---|-------|--------|--------|--------------|-------|-------|----------|--------------|--------|--------------|-----------------|--------------------|------|
| ER Petrobras | | REA: | | | | | | | | | | | SHEET: | 9 。 | , 32 |
| | | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | | | | | | | INTERNAL | | | | | | |
| 427 - Kanning Kalendar, Andrew Sterner, Sterne | | | | | | OF | FSHO | RE U | NITS | | | | | ESUP | |
| [108] | I-ET-3 ELECT | | | | | | | | | | R LO | W-VO | LTAGE | E GENE | ERIC |
| [109] | I-ET-3 FOR C | | | | | X-001 | - ME | DIUN | 4-VO | LTAGI | E FRE | QUEN | ICY CC | NVER | TER |
| [110] | I-ET-3 FREQU UNITS | JEN | | | | | | | - | CATIO AND | | FOR RTER: | LOW- S FOR (| VOLT. OFFSH | - |
| [111] | I-ET-3 OFFSH | | | | /3-P4X | X-002 | - SP | ECIF | ICAT | ION F | OR G | ENER | IC D.C | . UPS | FOR |
| [112] | I-ET-3 UNITS | | 00-51 | 40-77 | /3-P4X | X-003 | - SPE | ECIFI | CATI | ON FC | OR A.O | C. UPS | S FOR (| OFFSH | ORE |
| [113] | I-ET-3 | 010. | 00-51 | 47-71 | 1-P42 | X-001 | - MA | IN G | ENER | ATOR | FOR | OFFS | HORE | UNITS | |
| [114] | I-ET-3 OFFSH | | | | 0-P4X | X-001 | - EM | ERGI | ENCY | GENE | ERAT | OR PA | CKAG | E FOR | |
| [115] | I-ET-3 OFFSH | | | | 00-P4X | X-001 | - AU2 | XILIA | ARY (| GENEF | RATO | R PAC | CKAGE | FOR | |
| [116] | I-ET-3 UNITS | | 00-52 | 262-70 | 0-P4X | X-002 | - HUI | LL G | ENER | ATOR | PAC | KAGE | FOR C | FFSHO | ORE |
| [117] | I-ET-3 UNITS | | 00-51 | 40-77 | /3-P4X | X-001 | - SPE | ECIFI | CATI | ON FO | R D.C | C. UPS | FOR O | FFSHC | ORE |
| [118] | I-ET-3 | 010. | 00-55 | 520-88 | 88-P42 | X-001 | - AU | TOM | ATIO | N PAN | ELS | | | | |
| [119] | I-ET-3 ARCH | | | | 97-P43 | X-001 | – ELI | ECTF | RICAL | . SYST | EM A | UTON | MATIO | N | |
| [120] | I-ET-3 | 010 | 00 54 | 520 90 | 0 D A | Z 004 | ΑΤΓ | TOM | | | | V DEC | | | |

Note: Documents without code in the list are documents with variations according to project characteristics. Verify in project documentation list the reference for codes of these documents.

| | | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | -P4X-002 REV. M | | | | | |
|------|----------|--|------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | BR | AREA: | SHEET: 10 of 32 | | | | | |
| PET | ROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL | | | | | |
| | | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | | | | | |
| 3 | SCOPE | MODIFICATIONS AND ACTUAL REFEREN | CES | | | | | |
| 3.1 | ELECTRI | ence I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-009 - GENERAL REQU CAL MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UNIT requirements for offshore units: | | | | | | |
| | • Envire | onmental conditions, | | | | | | |
| | • Heat o | lissipation characteristics, | | | | | | |
| | | on and inclination limits requirements, | | | | | | |
| | | tion limits requirements, | | | | | | |
| | | dous areas requirements, | | | | | | |
| | | ruction requirements, IP grades, etc | | | | | | |
| | | ing labels for electrical equipment, | | | | | | |
| | | ge requirements, ency requirements, | | | | | | |
| | - | and RFI requirements. | | | | | | |
| 3.2 | For Main | generators, see reference I-ET-3010.00-5147-711-P4X-001 - MA SHORE UNITS. | AIN GENERATOR | | | | | |
| 3.3 | | generators (if existent), see reference I-ET-3010.00-5262-700- TOR PACKAGE FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | •P4X-002 - HULL | | | | | |
| 3.4 | | Auxiliary generator, see reference I-ET-3010.00-5262-700-P4X-001 - AUXILIARY ERATOR PACKAGE FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | | | | | | |
| 3.5 | • | gency generator, see reference I-ET-3010.00-5261-700-P4X-00 TOR PACKAGE FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | 1 - EMERGENCY | | | | | |
| 3.6 | | c induction motors, in Low-Voltage, see reference I-ET-3010.00- OLTAGE INDUCTION MOTORS FOR OFFSHORE UNITS | 5140-712-P4X-001 | | | | | |
| 3.7 | | c induction motors, in Medium-Voltage, see reference I-ET-3010. DIUM-VOLTAGE INDUCTION MOTORS FOR OFFSHORE U | | | | | | |
| 3.8 | UPS FOR | JPS, see references I-ET-3010.00-5140-773-P4X-001 - SPECIFIC OFFSHORE UNITS and I-ET-3010.00-5140-773-P4X-002 - IERIC D.C. UPS FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | | | | | | |
| 3.9 | | JPS, see reference I-ET-3010.00-5140-773-P4X-003 - SPECIFIC OFFSHORE UNITS. | CATION FOR A.C. | | | | | |
| 3.10 | | um-voltage frequency converters, see reference I-ET-3010.00-51 -VOLTAGE FREQUENCY CONVERTER FOR OFFSHORE U | | | | | | |
| 3.11 | | formers, see reference I-ET-3010.00-5140-713-P4X-001 - SPEC DRMERS FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | CIFICATION FOR | | | | | |
| 3.12 | | Voltage MCC and Switchgear, see reference I-ET-3010.00-51 LTAGE MOTOR CONTROL CENTER AND SWITCHGEAR | | | | | | |
| 3.13 | | ium-Voltage MCC and Switchgear see, I-ET-3010.00-514 -VOLTAGE MOTOR CONTROL CENTER AND SWI | | | | | | |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION ^{№.} I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | P4X-002 REV. M |
|-----------------------|---|------------------|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 11 of 32 |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP |
| OFFSHO | RE UNITS. | |
| 3010.00-5 | Voltage Generic electrical panels (not MCC or Switchgear) se 140-741-P4X-004 - SPECIFICATION FOR LOW-VOLT ICAL PANELS FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | |
| | eries, see reference I-ET-3010.00-5140-714-P4X-001 - SPEC | IFICATION FOR |
| Starters, a - SPEC | voltage VSD-FC (variable speed driver - frequency converter), nd Inverters (D.CA.C. converters), see reference I-ET-3010.00- CIFICATION FOR LOW-VOLTAGE FREQUENCY ARTERS AND INVERTERS FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | 5140-772-P4X-002 |
| 3.17 For the fo | llowing equipment for offshore units: | |
| • Busba | ar trunkings (busways), | |
| • Epox | y resin insulated bus bars, | |
| Micro | pprocessor-based multifunction protection relays (MMR), | |
| Locke | out relays, | |
| • Intelli | igent relays (IRS), | |
| • Auxil | iary relays, | |
| • Grou | nding resistors, | |
| • Powe | r capacitors and capacitor banks, | |
| • Light | ning and Surge Arresters, | |
| • Surge | e protective devices, | |
| • Instru | iment transformers, | |
| • React | ors, | |
| | r actuated valves, | |
| | ence I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-007 - SPECIFICATION ICAL EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | FOR GENERIC |
| 3.18 For the fo | llowing systems and equipment for offshore units: | |
| • Signa | lling for navigation aid, | |
| Aviat | ion obstruction warning signals for aircraft, | |
| • Helid | eck lighting system, | |
| • Light | ing fixtures and floodlights | |
| • Rescu | e and Searchlights | |
| • LED | Lamps | |
| • Lamp | Sockets | |
| • Light | ing poles, lighting support structures and conduits | |
| | nce I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-008 - SPECIFICATION FOR ICAL SIGNALLING FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | LIGHTING AND |
| | | |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | ^{№.} I-ET-3010.00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 | ^{REV.} M | |
|-----------|--|-------------------------------------|-----------|--------------------|--|
| BR | AREA: | | SHEET: 12 | 2 _{of} 32 | |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | | INTERNAL | | |
| | OFFSHOF | | ESU | P | |
| | | | | | |

4 MATERIALS

4.1 GENERAL

- 4.1.1 All electric material shall have high quality regarding dielectric rigidity, mechanical, thermal, and chemical resistance, following in a strictly manner the standards used for its fabrication.
- 4.1.2 All material employed shall be non-hygroscopic, flame retardant and resistant to corrosion caused by a saline atmosphere environment with the presence of moisture and contact with hydrocarbons.
- 4.1.3 Protecting treatments, including galvanic treatment sand paints, shall not include sealing joints, for which only neutral Vaseline or silicon grease shall be used.
- 4.1.4 All screws, nuts, washers, and connector for fitting equipment shall be made of bichromatized steel or stainless steel AISI-316L, except for application in cable trays and channels and for application in piping inside tanks, or in other specified applications where only stainless steel AISI-316L shall be used.
- 4.1.5 All materials specified into the following sections shall comply with the hazardous areas criteria, IP grades definitions, standardizations, and all other requirements defined in I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-009 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UNITS.

4.2 THREADED JOINTS

- 4.2.1 Unless otherwise stated, all threaded joints shall be taper type, NPT (National pipe taper) with standardized tolerances, according to ASME B1.20.1.
- 4.2.2 Cylindrical (metric) threaded joints are acceptable for lighting fixtures, for control boxes for push-buttons and signalling, for floodlights and for power socket-outlets.
- 4.2.3 Cylindrical (metric) threaded joints for other applications shall be submitted to PETROBRAS approval. For equipment installed in hazardous areas, the threads shall comply with the requirements of IEC 60079-0.

4.3 CONNECTORS FOR POWER, CONTROL AND GROUNDING

- 4.3.1 The connectors for power and control cables shall be made of electrolytic copper with tin coat, as ASTM B1, ASTM B2, ASTM B3, ASTM B8, ASTM B33, or ASTM B846, and shall not be of welded type.
- 4.3.2 The connectors for grounding cables either shall be made of:
 - Electrolytic copper with tin coat, as ASTM B1, ASTM B2, ASTM B3, ASTM B8, ASTM B33, or ASTM B846, or.
 - Naval Bronze of classic marine, high-strength, and corrosion-resistant alloy C462 or C464.

Both materials shall not be of welded type.

| - |
|---------|
| BR |
| TROBRAS |

No.

I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-002

INTERNAL

ESUP

SHEET:

REV.

Μ

4.4 GALVANIC INSULATION

ARFA

TITLE:

- 4.4.1 In order to avoid electrolytic corrosion, contacts between different metallic materials shall be prevented. Galvanic insulation shall be implemented where contact between different metallic materials is necessary.
- 4.4.2 Required by NFPA 780, with the exception of bimetallic connectors, direct contact between metals which galvanic potential differs by more than 0.5 V shall not be permitted.
- 4.4.3 The hot galvanizing by immersion shall have the following minimum characteristics:
 - a) for thickness ≥ 3 mm: 78µm (550g/m²).

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION

- b) for thickness < 3mm: 50 μ m (350g/m²).
- c) screws, washers, etc. ≥ 10 mm: 50 μ m.
- d) screws, washers, etc. < 10mm: 36µm.

4.5 ALUMINIUM MATERIALS REQUIREMENTS

4.5.1 The use of aluminium casing for electrical equipment and accessories is not allowed for outdoor areas.

Notes:

1) Aluminium material used in internal parts, not exposed to environment can be accepted.

2) Other uses of aluminium material, except external casings, shall be approved by PETROBRAS

- 4.5.2 Aluminium equipment shall be mounted on cast steel structure with a 5 mm rubber or neoprene insulation joint in between and with stainless steel AISI-316L bolts and nuts.
- 4.5.3 All equipment and components made in aluminium shall be in accordance with the alloy specifications as follows:
 - a) ASTM B26/B26M specification, ANSI 356.0 alloys for sand castings.
 - b) ASTM B108/B108M specification, ANSI 359.0 alloy for permanent mould castings.
 - c) ASTM B221 specification, 6063 or 6351 alloy for extruded bars, rods, wires, profiles, and tubes.
- 4.5.4 For aluminium superstructures that are provided with insulating material between aluminium and steel in order to prevent galvanic action, the washers or the terminals used to connect grounding cables shall be made of Cupal, according to DNV-OS-D201.

4.6 NON-METALLIC MATERIALS

- 4.6.1 Manufacturer shall furnish the certificates of prototype, issued by a recognized Testing Laboratory, as indicated in Table 1.
- 4.6.2 Certificates shall be homologated by a recognized Brazilian Entity and submitted to PETROBRAS and Classification Society approval.
- 4.6.3 Tests of Table 1 are dispensable, for unmanned area, if the component has a conformity certificate proving that it is adequate to hazardous area installation, issued by a recognized Testing Laboratory and approved by Classification Society.

| _ | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | P4X-002 REV. M |
|-----------|--|-----------------|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 14 of 32 |
| PETROBRAS | INTERNAL | |
| | ESUP | |

- 4.6.4 For cable tray see 4.7. Tests of Table 1 are not applicable for cable trays.
- 4.6.5 For junction boxes manufactured in Brazil, acceptance tests of flammability in accordance with UL 94 shall be carried out.
- 4.6.6 Non-metallic materials shall have flame self-extinguishing and non-fire propagating properties.
- 4.6.7 Non-metallic materials shall have a maximum FSI (Flame Spread Index) value of 25 according to ASTM E84 or a maximum burned distance of 30 mm at 10 seconds according to ASTM D635.

| Tests | Standards ⁽³⁾ | Reference value | Plugs and Socket- Outlets | Junction Boxes, Push- Buttons Stations | Lighting Fixtures | Lighting Panels ⁽²⁾ | Cable Fittings (Glands) |
|--|---------------------------------|---|---------------------------------|---|----------------------|-----------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| | ISO TS 19700 | Toxicity Value | | | | | |
| Toxicity Index ⁽¹⁾ | IMO 2010 FTP Code Part 2 | or Certificate of test results with compliance with one of the methods indicated. ⁽⁴⁾ | Х | Х | Х | Х | - |
| Smoke Specific Density Generated by Solid Materials ⁽¹⁾ | ASTM E662 | Smoke Specific Density or Certificate of results with compliance with one of the methods indicated. ⁽⁴⁾ | Х | Х | Х | х | - |
| Traction in Plastic | ISO 527 ASTM D790 UL 94 | Tensile strength ≥ 50Mpa or UL - Yellow card or similar certificate | Х | Х | Х | Х | Х |
| Flexure in Plastic | ISO 178 ASTM D790 UL 94 | Flexural strength ≥ 130Mpa Flexural module ≥ 8000Mpa or UL - Yellow card or similar certificate | Х | Х | Х | Х | Х |
| Water Absorption in Plastic | ISO 62 | ≤ 50 mg or UL-Yellow card or similar certificate of Suitable | х | Х | Х | Х | х |
| | UL 94 | for outdoor use with respect to exposure to water | | | | | |
| Resistance to Sunlight (Ultraviolet Rays) | ISO 4892 UL 94 | UL-Yellow card or similar certificate of Suitable for outdoor use with respect to exposure to Ultraviolet light | Х | Х | Х | Х | Х |
| Resistance to Impact | ISO 179-1 ASTM D256 UL 94 | ≥ 7J or UL-Yellow card or similar certificate | х | Х | Х | Х | х |
| Resistance to Chemical Agents | ASTM D543 UL 94 | UL-Yellow card or similar certificate | Х | Х | Х | Х | Х |
| Accelerated Aging | IEC 60216-1 IEC 60216-2 | UL-Yellow card or similar certificate of equipment lifetime expected | Х | Х | Х | Х | Х |
| Flammability | UL 94 | 1.5 mm or UL-Yellow card or similar certificate | Х | Х | Х | Х | - |
| Comparative Index of Superficial | ASTM D257 | $\leq 10 \ \mathrm{G}\Omega$ or | х | х | х | х | |
| Resistance | UL 94 | UL-Yellow card or similar certificate | | | | | - |
| Flame-Retardation | IEC 60092-101 | $\leq 60 \text{ mm}$ | X ⁽⁵⁾ | X ⁽⁵⁾ | X ⁽⁵⁾ | X ⁽⁵⁾ | - |
| Notes:1. Only for manned area. Manned areas are those occupied 24 hours a day, like control room and accommodations.2. Only for external areas application3. When more than one standard is mentioned, it is a "or", one of them can be used for reference.4. Alternative methods (See IEC 60695-7-2) only under Petrobras approval.5. Only if material is defined as flame retardant. | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

Table 1 - Non-Metallic Test Specimens - All Areas.

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | -P4X-002 REV. M | | | |
|--|---|-----------------------|--|--|--|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 15 of 32 | | | |
| PETROB | | INTERNAL | | | |
| Vermittigen Schwarzen (1985) | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | | | |
| 4.6.8 I | Non-metallic materials shall have the following electrical characteristics | 5: | | | |
| | Volume resistivity level below 10^5 ohms.m. | | | | |
| | Surface resistivity below $1M\Omega$ (10^6 ohms). | | | | |
| | Resistance to earth from any point not exceeding $1M\Omega$ (10^6 ohms). | | | | |
| 2 | Type approval procedure shall be according to IACS No. 73, tests according. | rding IEC 62631-3- | | | |
| 4.7 CA | BLE TRAYS | | | | |
| 4.7.1 | CABLE TRAYS GENERAL REQUIREMENTS | | | | |
| 4.7.1.1 | Cable trays include the following types: ladders trays, troughs, channed trays, and other similar structures. | l trays, solid bottom | | | |
| 4.7.1.2 | Cable trays components include sections of cable trays, sections of ch of ladder trays, support fittings, assembly fittings, and other accessor | • | | | |
| 4.7.1.3 | Cable trays and their accessories shall not present crushing, sharp edges or seams which an damage the external cover or cable insulation during launching or can cause damages to the health or physical integrity of personnel. | | | | |
| 4.7.1.4 | Il cable tray transition parts shall be industrial made, project and dimensioned for the able sizes loads required. The use of "in field" built transition parts are not accepted. | | | | |
| 4.7.1.5 | 4.7.1.5 Cable trays cover material shall be of the same material and the same thickness of cable trays they are protecting. | | | | |
| 4.7.1.6 | 4.7.1.6 When cables are subjected to mechanical impacts, proper additional protection by covers shall be foreseen, as defined in IEC 61892-6: | | | | |
| | • Protection cover shall be installed where cables can be: | | | | |
| | \circ exposed to mechanical damage, | | | | |
| | \circ to a height of at least 500 mm above floor level, | | | | |
| | \circ and additionally with kick plates around floor penetrations, | | | | |
| | \circ and when cable trays cross under grated floors. | | | | |
| 4.7.1.7 | In external areas, except for the conditions in 4.7.1.6, vertical sections not have a cover; due to restrictions in installation, inspection and m low probability of mechanical impact, e.g., flare cable trays. | | | | |
| 4.7.1.8 | Manufacturers shall provide means to avoid electrolytic corrosion cardissimilar materials. | aused by contact of | | | |
| 4.7.2 | 4.7.2 CABLE TRAY USE LOCATION | | | | |
| 4.7.2.1 | INTERNAL AREAS | | | | |
| 4.7.2.1.1 | Cable trays for internal areas shall be stainless steel AISI-316L or galvanized) steel painted according to I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL AND EVOFFSHORE UNITS. | -009 - GENERAL | | | |
| 4.7.2.1.2 | The use of non-metallic cable tray is forbidden. | | | | |

| | | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | 0.00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 | REV. | М |
|-------------|---|---|------------------|---------------|------------------|------|
| | | | 5.00-5140-700 | | 16 _{of} | 20 |
| BR | | | | | RNAL | 52 |
| PETROB | RAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MAT OFFSHORE UNITS | ERIAL FOR | | | |
| | | | | ES | UP | |
| 4.7.2.2 | EXT | FERNAL AREAS | | | | |
| 4.7.2.2.1 | | le trays for external areas shall be stainless steel allic, manufactured in composite material reinforce | | • | ıty, n | ion- |
| 4.7.2.2.2 | For appl | heavy-duty non-metallic cable trays and protective y: | e casings, the f | ollowing co | onditi | ons |
| • | may | all not be allowed in external areas which, according reach temperatures higher than the maximum tem sufacturer. In this case, stainless steel AISI-316L sl | perature of use | 10 | | dy, |
| | Exp | lanation notes: | | | | |
| | 0 T | The Fire Propagation Study define the maximum eached in case of fire in all process unit modules. | n temperature | values that | t can | be |
| | • The non-metallic cable trays and protective casings have a maximum temperature value to which strength capabilities are still under acceptance. | | | | | |
| | • In case of Fire Propagation Study defines a temperature for specific area that is equal to, or above limit values defined for non-metallic cable trays and protective casings temperature, stainless steel AISI-316L shall be used. | | | | | |
| 4.7.3 N | NON-I | METALLIC CABLE TRAYS | | | | |
| 4.7.3.1 | | vy-duty, non-metallic cable trays, manufactured i fiberglass, shall comply with the following requir | 1 | material re | einfor | ced |
| 4.7.3.1.1 | It sh | all comply with minimum Fire Integrity Level def | ined in Table 2 | 2. | | |
| | Note | e: This table is based in ABNT NBR 15708-3 and argency between these standards the most restrictive | nd ASTM F30 | | e of | any |
| | Table | e 2 - Criteria for Application of Non-Metallic Cable Trays | s and Protective | Casings. | | |
| | | Area | Minimum | n Fire Integi | ity Le | evel |
| Turboge | enerator | rs and Turbo-compressor hoods, moto-generators and moto- compressors rooms, boilers, and furnaces | | Level 2 | | |
| | | Engine room (cargo pump areas) | U | se not allowe | :d | |
| | | Chain lockers | | Level 2 | | |
| | | Oil storage tanks | | Level 2 | | |
| | | Fuel oil tanks | | Level 2 | | |
| | | Ballast water tanks | | Level 2 | | |
| | Cofferd | lams, void spaces, double bottoms, pipe tunnels, etc. | U | se not allowe | :d | |
| | | Control rooms, inside accommodation, offices | U | se not allowe | :d | |
| Embarkation | | ns on inflatable life rafts, lifeboats, rescue boats, muster station in open deck areas | ons, | Level 2 | | |
| | | n process modules, access catwalks, access ladders, skids of t, process plant and utilities, flare access, riser balcony | | Level 2 | | |

Level 2

Level 2

Use not allowed

Decks between process modules, access catwalks, access ladders, skids of equipment, process plant and utilities, turret's (including pull in deck), flare access,

riser balcony

Motor pump hoods for firefighting pump Other closed areas, not described above

| | | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | -P4X-002 REV. M | |
|-----------|--|---|----------------------|--|
| BR | | AREA: | SHEET: 17 of 32 | |
| PETROBE | RAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL | |
| | | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | |
| 4.7.3.1.2 | | all be designed complying with requirements of ABNT NBR 1570 IACS No. 73. In case of any divergency between these standards ies. | | |
| 4.7.3.1.3 | It sh | all be moulded by pultrusion process. | | |
| 4.7.3.1.4 | It sh | all have the following electrical characteristics: | | |
| | | • Volume resistivity level below 10 ⁵ ohms.m. | | |
| | | • Surface resistivity below $1M\Omega$ (10 ⁶ ohms). | | |
| | | • Resistance to earth from any point not exceeding $1M\Omega$ (10^6 of | hms). | |
| 4.7.3.1.5 | Тур 3-2. | e approval procedure shall be according to IACS No. 73, tests acc | cording IEC 62631- | |
| 4.7.3.2 | The definition of Fire Integrity Level for non-metallic cable trays shall be done using the criteria defined for non-metallic floor grating in ABNT NBR 15708-3 and ASTM F3059. See Table 2. | | | |
| 4.7.3.3 | | -metallic cable trays shall be tested according to ABNT NBR 15' 08-4, and IACS No. 73, considering the following minimum test | | |
| | • | Impact Resistance Test | | |
| | • | Safe Working Load (SWL) Test | | |
| | • | Flame Retardant Test | | |
| | • | Smoke and Toxicity Test | | |
| | • | Resistivity Test | | |
| 4.7.3.4 | | all be acceptable acrylic and phenolic alternatives for non-meta | llic cable-trays and | |
| 4.7.3.5 | | posite materials for offshore non-metallic cable trays installation bety type approval certificate that attest that it complies with indic | | |
| 4.7.3.6 | No. | reports of all tests required by ABNT NBR 15708-1, ABNT NBR 73, as well as the tests to obtain the type-approval certificates sh rOBRAS. | , | |
| 4.7.3.7 | shal | very, handling, storage, and preservation requirements of for non- l follow I-ET-3010.00-1352-130-P4X-001 - FLOOR GR STEMS AND GUARDRAILS MADE OF COMPOSITE MATER | ATINGS, TRAY | |
| 4.7.4 II | NSTA | ALLATION REQUIREMENTS FOR NON-METALLIC CAE | BLE TRAYS | |
| 4.7.4.1 | 130- | allation requirements for non-metallic cable trays shall follow I- P4X-001 - FLOOR GRATINGS, TRAY SYSTEMS AND GUA COMPOSITE MATERIALS. | | |
| 4.7.4.2 | As c | lefined in reference specification above: | | |
| 4.7.4.2.1 | | NUFACTURER shall present a procedure for installation ponents and structures in composite for evaluation and approval l | • | |
| 4.7.4.2.2 | | ling and/or cut-off of structural profiles shall be carried out account change is required, MANUFACTURER shall approve previous | 0 | |

| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 10 |
|-----------|--|---------------------|
| | | SHEET: 18 of |
| PETROBR | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR OFFSHORE UNITS | INTERNAL ESUP |
| 4.7.4.2.3 | Cut ends of shapes shall be properly sealed with compatible resin and specification of composite MANUFACTURER. | then painted usin |
| 4.7.4.2.4 | Pressure washer with a flat washer or self-locking nut with a flat was secure structures. | her shall be used |
| 4.7.4.2.5 | Any amendment to the structural profile required to be made in t approval from the MANUFACTURER | he field shall hav |
| 4.7.4.2.6 | For non-metallic cable trays, the acceptable torque range on the structure screws shall be: 15 N.m minimum and 22 N.m maximum, for union with thickness > 3mm. | |
| 4.7.4.2.7 | After installation of a composite structural material an inspection sha ensure compliance with all requirements presented at design docur release of the area. | |
| 4.7.4.2.8 | It shall be verified if the connections (curves and leads) of the Cable 7 adequate adhesion over the internal lamination blanket, used to join c | ••• |
| 4.7.5 C | ABLE TRAYS SUPPORT STRUCTURES | |
| 4.7.5.1 | Cable trays supports shall be made of stainless steel AISI-316L or galvanized) steel painted according to I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL AND EVOFFSHORE UNITS. | K-009 - GENERA |
| 4.7.5.2 | These supports shall be welded to structure, as required in I-DE-3010 002 - POWER INSTALLATION TYPICAL DETAILS. For welding I-ET-3010.00-1200-955-P4X-001 – WELDING. | |
| 4.7.5.3 | It is acceptable the use of welded pin technologies and assembled s 316L structures for support of cable trays if: | tainless steel AIS |
| 4.7.5.3.1 | It is provided that the structural loads generated by cables, trays and correctly dimensioned and submitted to PETROBRAS evaluation and | |
| 4.7.5.3.2 | It is used for lighting cable trays, in a maximum of three cable tray normal, emergency, essential) and not bigger than 50 mm. | ys per support (i.e |
| 4.7.5.3.3 | It is used for power cable trays, not hanging, not bigger than 50 mm, instrumentation purposes. | , only for control |
| 4.7.5.3.4 | It is used for telecom cable trays following telecommunication system more information see Telecommunication documents. | is requirements. F |
| 4.7.5.3.5 | All other application cases for welded pin technologies and assem AISI-316L structures for support of cable trays shall be submitted evaluation and approval. | |
| 4.8 PHA | ASE AND GROUNDING BARS | |
| 4.8.1 Fo | or grounding bars inside panels and other equipment shall be electroly | tic copper. |
| | or grounding bars for skids, earthing bosses, or any other bar for grounding they shall be made of stainless steel AISI 316L. | ounding in an ope |
| | | |

| | BR |
|----|---------|
| | |
| PE | TROBRAS |

ARFA

TITLE:

32

ESUP

SEALS FOR CABLES PASSAGE ON HAZARDOUS AREAS FLOORS AND 4.9 BULKHEADS

4.9.1 **MULTI CABLE TRANSIT – CONVENTIONAL TYPE WITH BLOCKS (MCT)**

- 4.9.1.1 MCTs (Multi Cable Transit) shall follow IEC 61892-6 and be standard type, with passage frame, insert blocks, spare blocks, stay plates, compression plates, end packing, etc.
- 4.9.1.2 Maximum individual frame dimensions shall be 120 mm width and 240 mm height (S-8). Combination frames can be used since each one of the component frames is within above mentioned limits.
- 4.9.1.3 MCTs shall have test certificate issued by Official Laboratory or Certifying Entity, to application on A-60 bulkheads without fire stop blanket over the blocks.
- MCTs blocks shall be multi-diameter type, adjustable to accommodate a range of cable 4.9.1.4 diameters with a solid central plug. Spare blocks shall be solid type.
- 4.9.1.5 Each MCT shall have at least 20% of spare blocks.
- 4.9.1.6 MCT installed below the worst damage waterline, as defined in IMO MODU CODE, shall be designed to support the column foreseen hydrostatic pressure. These MCTs shall have Certificated Test Reports considering minimum pressure of 4 bar.
- 4.9.1.7 MCTs shall be type-approved by Classification Society.
- 4.9.1.8 MCTs shall have certificates issued by an Official Laboratory or Certifying Entity when are applied in hazardous areas.

4.9.1.9 CANCELLED.

- 4.9.1.10 For external areas, only stainless steel MCT frames shall be used.
- 4.9.1.11 If not defined by specific document, for specific purposes or internal areas, MCT frames material shall be previously approved by PETROBRAS.

4.9.2 FLEXIBLE RAPID SEALING SYSTEM

- 4.9.2.1 This system shall be standard type, consisting of split insert cable sleeves and hollows, non-split filler sleeves (160 mm length) and a fire-resistant sealant, based on a single thermal expansive (5 to 10 times expansion capacity) component silicone compound. The colour of the sleeves and sealant shall be dark grey, as defined in ABNT NBR 6493. The type of sleeve shall be marked in yellow on the sleeves. The sealant cartridges shall be coded with batch number, date of manufacturing and its validity.
- 4.9.2.2 The conduit frame shall have a depth of 200 mm with maximum dimensions of 600 x 300mm. The frames may be constructed in rectangular or circular shape. For specific cases, e.g., higher pressure levels, Manufacturer shall indicate the limitation of frame dimensions.
- 4.9.2.3 The sealant shall be applied in a thickness of 20 mm at each side of penetration.
- 4.9.2.4 The size of penetration shall be in accordance with IMO Res. A.754 (18), not exceeding a filling rate of 40%. The shape of the conduit frame shall be designed according to the project requirements.
- 4.9.2.5 Materials shall be supplied by the Manufacturer having test certificate issued by Official Laboratory or Certifying Entity. The Flexible Rapid Sealing System shall be installed

| | - | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | ^{№.} I-ET-30 | 010.00-5140-700 |)-P4X-002 | 2 REV. | М |
|----------|---|---|-----------------------|--------------------|-----------|------------------|------|
| 3: | 1 | AREA: | | | SHEET: | 20 _{of} | 32 |
| PETROE | RAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELEC | | ATERIAL FOR | INT | ERNAL | |
| | | OFFSHOR | | | E | SUP | |
| | without extra fire stop blanket at the exposed side around the coaming and in front of the penetration when applied in A-60 bulkheads. No extra insulation shall be needed in front of the penetration when applied in decks. | | | | | | |
| 4.9.2.6 | | and filler sleeves (160mm) shall ha ze of the sleeves. | ve a wall thi | ckness of 3, 4 or | 5 mm dej | pendin | g on |
| 4.9.2.7 | Insert sleeves to be placed around each of the ducted cables (spare sleeves) shall be of the non-split type. Each penetration shall have 20% spare space for later extensions to be filled with filler sleeves. | | | | | | |
| 4.9.2.8 | IMO For p 120 x | Flexible Rapid Sealing System installed below the worst damage waterline, as defined in IMO MODU CODE, shall be designed to support the foreseen column hydrostatic pressure. For pressures up to 4 bar the conduit frame shall have individual dimensions of 120 x 280mm. The frames can be combined in larger dimensions, provided that the individual frame dimensions are not exceeded. | | | | | |
| 4.9.2.9 | decks | he installation of the Flexible Rapid Sealing System shall be permitted in watertight ecks, damage area and columns void space provided that the frame size is dimensioned and certified for the required pressure rating. | | | | | |
| 4.9.2.10 | These | The wire tights used to fix the sleeves around the cables shall not be of metallic material. These wire tights or strips shall be preferable made of nylon. This is to prevent heating caused by inductive current on metallic wire tights. | | | | | |
| 4.9.2.11 | Flexil | ble Rapid Sealing Systems shall be t | type-approve | ed by Classificati | on Societ | y. | |
| 4.9.2.12 | CAN | CELLED | | | | | |
| 4.9.2.13 | | r external areas, only stainless steel frames shall be used for Flexible Rapid Sealing stems. | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010 |).00-5140-700 [.] | -P4X-002 | ^{rev.} M | | | |
|---|--|--|---|---------------------|--|--|--|
| <i>B</i> R | AREA: | | SHEET: | 21 _{of} 32 | | | |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MAT | ERIAL FOR | INTEF | RNAL | | | |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | | | UP | | | |
| 4.10 CABLE (| 4.10 CABLE GLANDS | | | | | | |
| 4.10.1 Cable gl | 4.10.1 Cable gland shall follow IEC 62444. | | | | | | |
| | 4.10.2 Cable gland materials shall be selected in order to avoid electrolytic corrosion caused by contact of dissimilar materials. | | | | | | |
| 4.10.3 Cable gl | lands material shall follow the requirements of Ta | ble 3 and IEC | 61892-6: | | | | |
| | Table 3 - Cable Gland Material | | | | | | |
| | Type of Enclosure Material | Cable G | land Materia | al | | | |
| FRP (Fiber Reinforced | Plastic Enclosures | Aluminium ⁽³⁾ Naval Bronze/Brass ⁽²⁾ , Stainless steel AISI-316L Plastic For Sizes below M32 ⁽¹⁾ | | | | | |
| Plastic) | Plastic Enclosures reinforced with a metal gland plate for support of a large supply – and multicore cables | Alu: Naval Bi | minium ⁽³⁾ ronze/Brass ⁽² steel AISI-31 | 2), | | | |
| Metal Enclosures | Stainless Steel | Naval Bronze/Brass ⁽²⁾ , Stainless steel AISI-316L | | | | | |
| (except Aluminium | n) Cast Iron | Stainless s | steel AISI-31 | 6L | | | |
| | Naval Bronze ⁽²⁾ | Naval B | ronze/Brass (| 2) | | | |
| | Aluminium enclosures ⁽³⁾ Aluminium ⁽³⁾ Naval Bronze/Brass ⁽²⁾ , Stainless steel AISI-316L | | | | | | |
| Nylon cable glands shall be accepted only up to maximum size 1", with metallic plate (made of Stainless Steel AISI-316L, Aluminium or Naval Bronze ⁽²⁾) for grounding, with internal locknut and if they are certified as Ex e or Ex n. Naval Bronze/Brass shall be classic marine, high-strength, and corrosion-resistant alloy C462 or C464, and it shall be 10 micra nickel plated. Aluminium shall follow section 4.5. See IEC 61892-7 for cable glands for Ex equipment. | | | | | | | |
| 4.10.4 The app | 4.10.4 The application of Cable Grands shall follow Table 4. | | | | | | |

Table 4 - Cable Gland Application Reference

| Application | Type of Cable Gland | Notes | | |
|--|---------------------|----------|--|--|
| Lighting Fixtures | Metric or NPT | (1) | | |
| Push Button Box | Metric or NPT | (1) | | |
| Signalling Box | Metric or NPT | (1) | | |
| Floodlights | Metric or NPT | (1) | | |
| Socket-outlets | Metric or NPT | (1) | | |
| Junction Boxes | Metric or NPT | (1), (2) | | |
| Indoor Electrical Panels | Metric or NPT | (1) | | |
| Outdoor Electrical Panels | NPT | (1), (2) | | |
| Transformers | Metric | (1) | | |
| Low-voltage motors | NPT | (1) | | |
| Hazardous Areas Equipment | Metric or NPT | (3) | | |
| Other Equipment | - | (4) | | |
| Notes (1) For materials see Table 3. (2) NPT cable glands shall be used when the enclosure thickness allows threaded holes. (3) The cable gland model shall be in conformity with equipment hazardous area certificate. (4) For equipment not included in above Table consult PETROBRAS for guidance. 4.10.5 Threaded joints shall comply with item 4.2. | | | | |

| | | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | -P4X-002 | ^{REV.} M |
|-----------|--|--|---------------|--------------------|
| =] | R | AREA: | SHEET: 2 | 2 _{of} 32 |
| PETROBRAS | | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTER | NAL |
| | | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESL | P |
| 4.10.6 | | glands for installation at non threaded holes of removable plures shall have cylindrical thread with locknut. | ates or ste | el sheet |
| 4.10.7 | 4.10.7 Cable glands for armoured cables shall be metal type and the metallic pair shall not creat an electrolytic corrosion in case of dissimilar metallic material. Stainless steel and copp armour shall use Stainless Steel Cable glands. | | | |
| 4.11 P | OWER | SOCKET-OUTLETS | | |
| 4.11.1 | Power to item | socket-outlet enclosures shall be made of FRP (Fibre Reinforced 4.6. | l Plastic) ac | cording |
| 4.11.2 | | andardization of plug use, all socket-outlets shall be "Exnodation internal areas. | a de", exc | ept for |
| 4.11.3 | For sta manufa | andardization and operational safety all Ex outlets shall bacturer. | e from th | e same |
| 4.11.4 | Power | socket-outlets shall be fitted with the corresponding plugs. | | |
| 4.11.5 | Thread | ed joints shall comply with item 4.2. | | |
| 4.11.6 | Power | socket-outlets for 480V / 690V circuits shall be provided with blo | ocking swite | ches. |
| 4.11.7 | | tdoor Ex de socket-outlets shall have an incorporated Ex d exked with the plug to prevent insertion or extraction with the ener | | |
| 4.11.8 | | socket-outlets for 480V / 690V circuits shall be four (04) poles, th d rated for 63A. Power socket-outlets for diving equipment shall | 1 | U |
| | | Il three-phase sockets of the unit shall have the same phase-sequence $R > S > T$ shall be a | - | |
| 4.11.9 | Each p | ower socket-outlet in 480V shall be furnished with one (01) spare | e plug. | |
| 4.11.10 | neutral | cuits up to 127V, the capacities for socket-outlets shall be 250V, t + ground, 16A. Each socket outlet shall be furnished with one (umber of reserve spare plugs shall be agreed with PETROBRAS. | - | - |
| 4.11.11 | 250V, t | p-phase circuits above 127V up to 240V, the capacities for soc three poles, two phases + ground, 16A. Each socket outlet shall be are plug. The final number of reserve spare plugs shall be agreed v | furnished v | with one |
| 4.11.12 | 250V, f | ee-phase circuits above 127V up to 240V, the capacities for soc four poles, three phases + ground, 32A. Each socket outlet shall be are plug. The final number of reserve spare plugs shall be agreed v | furnished v | with one |
| 4.11.13 | | echanical protection degree shall be kept and guaranteed with th e plug extracted. | e plug inser | ted and |
| 4.11.14 | | outlets for accommodation areas shall comply with standard NBR 14136, and IEC 60309 where applicable. | ization def | ined by |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

| 3 | | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | P4X-002 | REV. | Μ |
|---|-------------------|--|-------------|------------------|-------|
| B | R | AREA: | SHEET: | 23 _{of} | 32 |
| | OBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTE | RNAL | |
| 19 - 10 - 1945 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 1995 - 199 | | OFFSHORE UNITS | ES | UP | |
| 4.12 J | UNCTI | ON BOXES | | | |
| 4.12.1 | | on boxes enclosures shall be made of stainless steel AISI-316L, als according to item 4.6. With the following rule of application: | or of non | -meta | allio |
| | • sta | inless steel AISI-316L - for external and internal areas. | | | |
| | • no | n-metallic materials - only for external areas. | | | |
| 4.12.2 | defined | on boxes for use in hazardous areas and shall be "Ex e" and shall i in I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-009 - GENERAL REQU FRICAL MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UN | IREMENT | | |
| 4.12.3 | They s | hall be provided with terminal blocks when required for interconr | ection. | | |
| 4.12.4 | 5140-7 | etallic junction boxes shall comply with painting criteria defined 00-P4X-009 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRI EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | | | |
| 4.12.5 | For not | n-metallic junction boxes painting is not required. | | | |
| 4.12.6 | | In order to comply with the standardization all Ex junction boxes shall be provide by the same manufacturer. | | | |
| 4.12.7 | | entrances shall be through the bottom side for all outdoor junction ise defined in Project Documentation. | ction boxe | s, un | less |
| 4.12.8 | temper | For junction boxes installed in high temperature locations (i.e.: flare tower where emperature environments are rated from 250°C up to an extreme of 800°C), the junction boxes and internal components shall be designed for the indicate temperatures. | | | |
| 4.13 U | J MBILI | CAL POWER CABLE JUNCTION BOX | | | |
| 4.13.1 | | e umbilical topside termination, it shall be supplied a topside jun ble splices. Both cases shall include the field assembly after the un | | | - |
| 4.13.2 | hazard shall b | ope of supply shall include a power junction box (PJB) suitabous area classified Zone 2, Group IIA, Class T3 according to IE certified by INMETRO as well as the certification autho DBRAS after the umbilical purchase order. | C 60079. | The | PJB |
| 4.13.3 | | plications with maximum operational VSD output voltage lower t ion shall be "Ex e" (Increased Safety) according to IEC 60079-7. | | , the | PJE |
| 4.13.4 | | plications with maximum operational VSD output voltage equal or B protection shall be "Ex d" (Flameproof) according to IEC 60079 | - | ın 11 | kV |
| 4.13.5 | | inimum degree of protection provided by the PJB enclosure shall 60529. | be IP56 a | ccord | ling |
| 4.13.6 | • | nction box shall provide the electrical connection between the rest of Stainless Steel AISI 316L and suitable to earth the metallic a | | | |
| 4.13.7 | For the | e surface cables, PETROBRAS shall be consulted, after the Umbil | ical purcha | ise or | der |
| 4.13.8 | be con | glands for all incoming cables shall be part of the scope of supply patible with the PJB hazardous area protection type and degree on nless Steel AISI 316L and suitable to earth the metallic armour ur | of protecti | on, m | nade |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | 40-700-P4X-002 REV. M |
|-----------|---|-----------------------|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 24 of 32 |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL I | FOR INTERNAL |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP |

- 4.13.9 The PJB internal space, layout and insulated cable connections and components shall be compatible with the umbilical electrical power cable specifications, the respective PETROBRAS RM, and the IEC 60079 applicable parts. Each phase connection inside de PJB shall be easily identified with the same identification used in each umbilical power single core cable.
- 4.13.10 The PJB shall allow disconnection and reconnection of surface and subsea power cables maintaining its protection type and degree of protection. The PJB shall allow the performance of insulation resistance measurements of each of these cables when disconnected. The supplier shall provide procedures for safety disconnection and reconnection of surface and subsea cables.

4.14 CONTROL BOXES FOR PUSH-BUTTONS AND SIGNALLING

- 4.14.1 Control boxes for push-buttons and signalling installed in hazardous areas and external area equipment shall be Ex de type.
- 4.14.2 Control boxes for push-buttons and signalling shall be made of non-metallic materials according to item 4.6.
- 4.14.3 Push-buttons for ON (START) function shall be without release (return after push). Pushbuttons for OFF (STOP) function shall be with release (retain after push).
- 4.14.4 Push-buttons for OFF (STOP) function shall have means for locking with padlock in OFF (STOP) positions.
- 4.14.5 All field push-button shall have a load tag and a load identification or push-button function identification. Identification plate shall be in black acrylic engraved with white letter for equipment installed indoors or in stainless steel AISI-316L for equipment installed outdoors.
- 4.14.6 Push-buttons for ON (START) function shall have a clear protective cover in order to avoid involuntary operation, as defined in NR-12.

4.15 TERMINAL LUGS AND TERMINAL BLOCKS FOR CABLES

- 4.15.1 Terminal lugs shall be suitable for naval use, shall be anti-vibration type and assembled on support profiles ("C" channels).
- 4.15.2 In order that neither destruction nor deformation of wires forming the cable occurs, terminal lugs shall be of indirect press over the conductor.
- 4.15.3 They shall have a minimum capacity of 20A/600V and shall be made of steatite or melamine insulation, not containing toxic or organic substances.
- 4.15.4 It shall not be accepted more than one cable connected to each terminal. In case of necessity of connection of more than one cable at the same point, it shall be used one terminal lug for each cable and these terminal lugs shall be connected by metallic bridge bars.
- 4.15.5 Jumpers between terminals through external conductors shall not be accepted in terminal blocks. For this purpose, metallic bridge bars shall be used.
- 4.15.6 The terminals strips shall be installed in order to guarantee enough space to perform the cable terminations, easy access to terminals and easy reading of the identification rings.
- 4.15.7 The terminals strips shall be numbered with progressive numbers and codified as per electrical diagram indications.

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION №. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | P4X-002 | ^{REV.} M | | |
|-----------|---|----------|--------------------|--|--|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 2 | 5 _{of} 32 | | |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTER | NAL | | |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESU | IP | | |
| | | | | | |

4.16 CABLE CLEATS

- 4.16.1 The material of cable cleats, straps, saddles, or bands shall comply with Classification Society requirements and IEC 61914.
- 4.16.2 The cleats installed outdoors, in naturally ventilated areas and wash down areas, shall be made of stainless steel, AISI-316L.
- 4.16.3 Trefoil cable cleats for single core power cables shall be approved for the potential shortcircuit stress.
- 4.16.4 Cable cleat tests shall follow IEC 61914.
- 4.16.5 The use of plastic material bands or straps is not allowed for fixing electrical cables.

4.17 ELECTRICAL CABLES

4.17.1 GENERAL

- 4.17.1.1 This section requirement applies only to electrical cables.
- 4.17.1.1.1 For Automation and Instrument cables I-ET-3010.00-1200-800-P4X-013 GENERAL CRITERIA FOR INSTRUMENTATION PROJECTS.
- 4.17.1.1.2 For telecommunication cables see Telecommunication documents.
- 4.17.1.1.3 For Automation and Instrument cables and telecommunication cables see specific Classification Society applicable requirements.
- 4.17.1.2 The minimum requirements for the design, fabrication, and tests of electric cables, shall be in accordance with hereby indicated and with standards IEC 61892-4, IEC 60092-350, IEC 60092-353, IEC 60092-354, IEC 60092-376, IEC 60332-1-2 and IEC 60332-1-3, IEC 60332-3-22 and when required, according to IEC 60331-11 and IEC 60331-21.
- 4.17.1.3 Electrical cables smoke emissions shall comply with IEC 61034-2 and with low toxic emissions defined in IEC 60754-1 and IEC 60754-2.
- 4.17.1.4 Cables installed in or crossing hazardous areas shall additionally comply with requirements of IEC 61892-1 and IEC 61892-7.
- 4.17.1.5 Cables connecting VSD-FCs to motors shall additionally comply with requirements of IEC TS 60034-25.
- 4.17.1.6 Electric cables shall be proper for installation in environments subjected to humidity, salinity and with hydrocarbons chemical action.
- 4.17.1.7 For floating units, all cables shall be "type-approved" by Classification Society.
- 4.17.1.8 Cable splices shall be avoided. If necessary, cable splices shall agree with IEC 61892-7.
- 4.17.1.9 Power cables used in variable frequency drive and similar non-linear-loads applications shall also comply with IEEE 1580 recommended guidelines, where it is applicable.

4.17.2 CONSTRUCTIVE CHARACTERISTICS

- 4.17.2.1 All cables shall be naval type, with compact filling and circular section, flame spread behaviour according to IEC 60332-3-22 Category A.
- 4.17.2.2 Cables shall be suitable to operate under voltage levels shown on project documentation, with following classes:

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | -P4X-002 REV. M | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 26 of 32 | | |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL | | |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | 0/250(300) V - for control and signalling isolated systems with 0V or up to 220 V for bolted grounded neutral systems (according | 0 1 | | |
| , | 0/750 V - for control and signalling isolated systems with rated voltage up to 750 V for bolted grounded neutral systems with rated voltage up to 750 V | 0 1 | | |
| (w pro | 5/1.0 kV - for lighting, protection, heating and power systems ithout automatic trip for ground faults) with rated voltage up to 700 ptection, heating, and power systems category A (automatic trip th rated voltage up to 700V, according to IEC 61892-4 and IEC 6 |)V, and for lighting, for ground faults) | | |
| , | 8/3.0 kV - for heating and power systems with rated voltage above pre indicated in Project Documentation. | 700 V up to 1.8 kV, | | |
| e) 3.6 | 5/6 kV - for power systems with rated voltage up to 4.16 kV. | | | |
| f) 6/1 | 0 kV - for power systems with rated voltage up to 6.6 kV. | | | |
| 0, | 7/15 kV - for power systems category A according to IEC 61892 2 (automatic trip for ground faults) and with rated voltage up to 1 | | | |
| , | /20 kV - for power systems category B or C according to IEC 092-352, (without automatic trip for ground faults) with rated vol | | | |
| 4.17.2.3 Cables | outer sheath (protective cover) colour shall be: | | | |
| 4.17.2.3.1 For | grounding cables, the combination green-and-yellow according to |) IEC 60445. | | |
| 4.17.2.3.2 For | intrinsically safe apparatus (IS circuits), light blue, according to I | EC 60079-11. | | |
| 4.17.2.3.3 For | three phase A.C. cables, brown-black-grey according to IEC 6044 | 45. | | |
| | e: Any two-phase variation of the three-phase system may use any ours indicated above, according to IEC 60445. | combination of the | | |
| 4.17.2.3.4 For | single phase A.C. cables, brown or black, according to IEC 60443 | 5. | | |
| 4.17.2.3.5 For | D.C. positive conductor, red, according to ABNT NBR 5410. | | | |
| 4.17.2.3.6 For | D.C. negative conductor, black, according to ABNT NBR 5410. | | | |
| degrada | ter sheath (protective cover) for cables exposed to sun light shall be ation by UV radiation and shall comply with UL 1581 Section ation issued by other recognized laboratory shall be submitted al. | n 1200. Equivalent | | |
| 4.17.2.5 The "minimum curvature radius" for multi-core armoured cables shall not exceed ten times their rated diameter and for single-core armoured cables shall not exceed twelve times their rated diameter. | | | | |
| gas det etc.), ca and ca certifie related for the applica | for circuits that shall operate under fire conditions (systems for fire ection, alarm, public address, shut-down, emergency switch-off, eables that feed essential and emergency services that are installed bles crossing machinery space category A, as defined by IMC d for circuit integrity under fire conditions, according to IEC 6033 brackets may also be painted with specific products intended to a expected fire and time conditions. The test reports of these tion procedures shall be subjected to PETROBRAS approval. | emergency lighting, in hazardous areas, O SOLAS, shall be 1. These cables and keep their integrity | | |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 REV. M | | |
|--|---|-----------------|--|--|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 27 of 32 | | |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL | | |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | | |
| 4.17.2.8 Power cables shall be proper for continuous operation, with maximum copper temperature not exceeding of 90°C. | | | | |
| 4.17.3 CONSTRUCTIVE FORMATION | | | | |
| 4.17.3.1 Cables shall have the following formation sequence: | | | | |
| | | | | |

a) Stranded circular non-compacted conductor, Class 2 according to IEC 60228, formed by tinned copper, soft temper.

Note 1: flexible conductors, Class 5 according to IEC 60228, may be accepted if the same ampacity (current rating) and voltage drops are considered.

Note 2: compacted conductor shall be accepted only if:

- (i) comply with requirements above.
- (ii) conduction capacity in Amperes at conductor nominal temperature 90°C (environmental temperature is 45°C as defined in I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-009 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UNITS) is equal or superior to the conduction capacity defined in IEC 61892-4 (a comparative table is required).
- (iii) Manufacturer shall prove that the curvature radius complies with in IEC 61892-6 and cable installations affected by the proposal will not need any modifications (a comparative table is required).
- (iv) Manufacturer shall prove that cable impedance values are similar to those of non-compact cables and electrical studies will not be affected (a comparative table is required).
- (v) there will not be any impact, modification, or any need of change in any previous contracts, services, activities, and etc., resulting of this modification.
- b) Insulation:
 - HF-EPR (halogen-free ethylene propylene rubber) or HF-XLPE (halogen-free cross-linked polyethylene reticulate) for accommodations.
 - EPR, HEPR, XLPE or PVC for control and signal cables installed inside panels.
 - EPR, HEPR or XLPE for other areas.
- c) Filling: polychloroprene or halogen free materials.
- d) Shield or Braid:
 - Non-magnetic using copper, bronze, or brass threads for single-core cables in A.C. system and D.C. system with high ripple content.
 - Low irradiation, non-magnetic for single-core cables between VSD-FCs and motors.
 - Low irradiation, metallic for multi-core cables between VSD-FCs and motors.
 - Metallic for each pair in multicore cables for IS (intrinsically safe) circuits. For type-approved multicore cables for IS circuits, the individual shields are not required.
 - Common metallic for cables for IS (intrinsically safe) circuits.

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-70 | 00-P4X-002 REV. M | | | |
|-----------|---|-------------------------|--|--|--|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 28 of 32 | | | |
| PETROBRA | | INTERNAL | | | |
| | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | | | |
| | • Multiple cables for discrete signals (on/off) shall have at leas | t overall shielding. | | | |
| | • Multiple cables (multiterns or multiquad) for analogica individual shielding by pair (tern or quad) and also, the gener the whole set. All shielding, individual or general shall have | al shielding involving | | | |
| e) | Armour: | | | | |
| | • Galvanized steel threads braid protected by anti-corrosive signal or power cables installed in, or crossing, hazardous ar and for other cables when required by Classification Society. | eas Zone 0 or Zone 1, | | | |
| | • Copper or other non-magnetic metal threads braid protected b for single-core cables installed in, or crossing, hazardous are and for other cables when required by Classification Society. | eas Zone 0 or Zone 1, | | | |
| | • Galvanized steel shall be used for multi-core signal or power | cables | | | |
| | • Copper or other non-magnetic metal threads braid protected b shall be used for single-core cables. | y anti-corrosive cover | | | |
| | • Armour cables shall be installed in, or near: | | | | |
| | i. cargo handling or cargo storage areas. ii. permanent maintenance areas. iii. main deck areas near human transit walkways. iv. submerse, non-movable bilge pumps, as defined in IEC v. other defined locations as required by Classification Social | | | | |
| f) | Outer sheath insulation (protective cover) type shall be as belo 60092-360: | ow, according to IEC | | | |
| | • SHF1 or SHF2 – for accommodation and internal areas v | vithout hydrocarbon. | | | |
| | • SE or SH or SHF2 – for external areas with hydrocarbon. | | | | |
| | • ST2 or SE or SHF2- for external areas without hydrocarbon. | | | | |
| | or cables to be installed only inside the accommodation areas, all roormation shall be halogen free. | naterials used on their | | | |
| | ontrol cables shall be shaped according to the quantity of c andardized as 3, 5, 7, 10, 15 or 20 conductors per cable. | onductors per cable, | | | |
| in fo | n control cables where there is traffic of analogue signals and in aterface/interconnection with PLC, control cables shall follow the s or instruments, with twisted pair, individual shielding for each pair ander the outer cover. | specification of cables | | | |
| 4.17.4 FL | 4.17.4 FLARE CABLE SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS | | | | |
| | hese requirements are applicable to all cables installed in high temp nition, thermocouple, or similar applications, but not data bus prot | | | | |
| | able conductor shall be 27% nickel-plated copper (27% NPC) to re- | duce corrosion in high | | | |

4.17.4.3 Cable shall have a mica wrap to provide strong dielectric properties and good tensile

| | | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 REV. N |
|------------------|---------|---|-------------------------------|
| 3 | R | AREA: | SHEET: 29 of 3 |
| PETROBRAS | | SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL |
| | | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP |
| | streng | th and to resist heat and harsh chemicals such as alkali and acids | |
| 4.17.4.4 | | shall be suitable for virtually all flare stack igniter applications a to 25 kV . | nd be voltage rate |
| 4.17.4.5 | Cable | for power and control shall be voltage rated $0.6/1$ kV. | |
| 4.17.4.6 | | shall provide superior heat and voltage protection and resistance er an also flexibility through high voltage silicone mica insulatio | |
| 4.17.4.7 | | shall provide insulation and jacketing protection in the most exponents rated from 250°C up to an extreme of 800°C. | xtreme temperatur |
| | | Cable minimum and maximum temperature ratings shall co | mply with project |
| 4.17.4.8 | additi | shall provide braided fiberglass over-coated with a fluorop onal weather and chemical protection based in a fluoropolymer or n, or a combination of both systems. | • 1 |
| 4.18 O | PTICA | L FIBER CABLES AND ACCESSORIES | |
| 4.18.1 | - | fibre cables used in network systems shall be according to re and IEC 60793 including maximum temperature operation of 8 | 1 |
| 4.18.2 | - | fibre cables shall comply with indicated test standards IEC 6032 C 60332-3-10 and IEC 60332-3-22. | 32-1-2, IEC 60332 |
| 4.18.3 | 3010.00 | er requirements for optical fiber cables and accessories shall of 0-5520-888-P4X-001 - AUTOMATION PANELS and I-ET- 04 - AUTOMATION NETWORK REQUIREMENTS. | |
| 4.19 N | ETWO | RK CABLES AND ACCESSORIES | |
| 4.19.1 | 3010.00 | work cables characteristics, construction and accessories shall D-5140-797-P4X-001 – ELECTRICAL SYSTEM ITECTURE. | comply with I-ET AUTOMATIO |
| 4.20 C | ONDU | ITS | |
| 4.20.1 | 700-P4 | ts shall be of galvanized steel and supplied painted according to I X-009 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL MENT FOR OFFSHORE UNITS. | |
| | | to to be applied on becordous areas shall be SCUEDIUE 40, soot | |
| 4.20.2 | Condui | ts to be applied on hazardous areas shall be SCHEDULE 40, sear | mless. |
| 4.20.2 4.20.3 | | er areas, including indoor living quarters, conduits shall be medi | |

| - | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION | ^{№.} I-ET-3010.00-5140-700- | -P4X-002 REV. M |
|-----------|-------------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------------|
| BR | AREA: | | SHEET: 30 of 32 |
| PETROBRAS | SPECIFICATION FOR ELE | CTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL |
| | OFFSHOP | | ESUP |
| | | | |

4.21 ANALOGUE TRANSDUCERS

- 4.21.1 When required, to transmit analogue signals (voltage, current, power, power factor, etc.) to A&C through Electrical System Automation Panel, it shall be used transducers with rated output signal 4-20mA.
- 4.21.2 When transducers require auxiliary voltage, it shall be used 220VDC, when control voltage is obtained from D.C. UPS or 120VAC for other cases.

4.22 HEAT TRACING

- 4.22.1 Equipment and material for heat tracing shall comply with the requirements of IEC 60519 and IEC 62395.
- 4.22.2 Equipment and material for heat tracing in hazardous areas shall additionally comply with the requirements of IEC 60079-30-1 and IEC 60079-30-2.
- 4.22.3 PVC insulate cables susceptible to damage at low temperatures shall be avoided or freeze protection provided as required in IEC 62395.

4.23 PRINTED CIRCUIT BOARDS

- 4.23.1 Printed circuit-boards, circuit cards and their accessories shall be designed and constructed in a tropicalized version, as defined in I-ET-3010.00-5140-700-P4X-009 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT FOR OFFSHORE UNITS.
- 4.23.2 For the achievement of such ruggedness, the cards shall be protected with a special varnish film, suitable for offshore industrial environment. Other corrosion resistant materials solutions shall be submitted to PETROBRAS for approval.
- 4.23.3 Besides the coating of the cards, the varnish is also to be furnished separately, in adequate quantity, for maintenance purposes.
- 4.23.4 Additionally, printed circuit-boards, circuit cards and their accessories shall comply with the following requirements:
 - conformal coating treatment, according to IEC 61086.
 - application of reinforced protective resin Class 2 (high reliability), according to IEC 61086.
 - test for dry heat, according to IEC 60068-2-2.
 - test for mould growth, according to IEC 60068-2-10.
 - test for salt mist, according to IEC 60068-2-11.
 - test for change of temperature, according to IEC 60068-2-14.
 - test for damp heat, according to IEC 60068-2-30.

Either test report certificates or manufacturer similar test report certificates are acceptable.

4.23.5 Printed circuit boards shall be replaceable without the use of a soldering iron.

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 REV. M | |
|------------|--|-----------------|--|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 31 of 32 | |
| | | INTERNAL | |
| PETROBRAS | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP | |
| | | <u> </u> | |
| 5 ANNEX | I – ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS | | |
| | Iternating Current | | |
| | SSOCIAÇÃO BRASILEIRA DE NORMALIZAÇÃO TÉCNICA | | |
| ANSI A | MERICAN NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTITUTE | | |
| ASTM A | MERICAN SOCIETY FOR TESTING AND MATERIALS | | |
| D.C. D | irect Current | | |
| DNV D | ET NORSKE VERITAS | | |
| DPC D | epartamento de Portos e Costas | | |
| EMC E | lectrical Magnetic Compatibility | | |
| EPR Et | thylene Propylene Rubber | | |
| ESD E | mergency Shutdown | | |
| ET To | echnical Specification | | |
| Ex H | azardous area classification equipment | | |
| FPSO FI | loating, Production, Storage and Offloading Unit | | |
| FRP Fi | ibre Reinforced Plastic | | |
| FSI FI | lame Spread Index | | |
| FSO FI | loating, Storage and Offloading Unit | | |
| HDG H | ot Dipped Galvanized | | |
| HF-EPR H | alogen-Free Ethylene Propylene Rubber | | |
| HF-XLPE H | alogen-Free Cross-Linked Polyethylene Reticulate | | |
| | VTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF CLASSIFICATION SOCIETIES | | |
| IE In | strumentation Earth Grounding | | |
| | Iternational Electrotechnical Commission | | |
| | telligent electronic device | | |
| | stitute of Electrotechnical and Electronic Engineers | | |
| | VTERNATIONAL MARITINE ORGANIZATION | | |
| | stituto Nacional de Metrologia Normalização e Qualidade Industrial | | |
| | itelligent relays | | |
| | trinsically Safe Grounding | | |
| | TERNATIONAL STANDARDIZATION ORGANIZATION | | |
| 150 | NTERNATIONAL STANDARDIZATION ORGANIZATION | | |
| | action Box | | |
| 15 | ight Emitting Diode | | |
| | lotor Control Centre | | |
| mee | loulded-Case Circuit-Breaker | | |
| шеев | Iulti cable transit | | |
| mer | licroprocessor-based multifunction protection relays | | |
| | ational Electrical Manufacturers Association | | |
| I (EI)II I | ATIONAL FIRE PROTECTION ASSOCIATION | | |
| | ational pipe taper | | |
| | | | |
| | NORMA REGULAMENTADORA (Labour secretary regulating standards) Power Junction Box | | |
| 1 20 | | | |
| | Protective Earth Grounding Power Factor | | |
| 11 | ower Factor | | |

| | TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION No. I-ET-3010.00-5140-700 | -P4X-002 REV. M |
|-----------|--|-----------------|
| BR | AREA: | SHEET: 32 of 32 |
| PETROBRAS | TITLE: SPECIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL MATERIAL FOR | INTERNAL |
| FEINODNAS | OFFSHORE UNITS | ESUP |
| PVC | Polyvinyl Chloride |] |
| | Residual Current Protective Device | |
| Кев | | |
| | Radio Frequency Interference | |
| | Radio Frequency Identification | |
| | Material Requisition | |
| RM | Request for Material | |
| RMS | Root Mean Square | |
| RT | Routine Test | |
| SPD | Surge Protective Devices | |
| | System of Electrical Protection against Atmospheric Discharges | |
| ST | Special Test | |
| SWL | Safe Working Load Test | |
| TT | Type Test | |
| UL | UNDERWRITERS LABORATORIES INC | |
| Un | Rated Voltage | |
| UPS | Uninterruptible Power Supply | |
| UV | Ultra Violet | |
| VSD | Variable Speed Drive | |
| VSD-FC | Variable Speed Drive – Frequency Converter | |
| XLPE | Cross-Linked Polyethylene Reticulate | |